
 

               

Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes                                       Page 1                                               July 11, 2016 

Office of Board of Selectmen 
143 Main Street, P.O. Box 310, Belmont, New Hampshire 03220-0310 

Telephone: (603) 267-8300  Fax: (603) 267-8327 

 

 

 

 

Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes 

 

Monday, July 11, 2016 5:00 p.m. 

 

Corner Meeting House 

 

 

 

 

 Chairman Ruth Mooney called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. Also present were 

Selectman Jon Pike, Selectman Ronald Cormier, Town Administrator Jeanne Beaudin, 

Administrative Assistant Cary Lagace, Acting Fire Captain Newhall, Bill Nutter, Donna Cilley 

and Media member Gail Ober. 

 

Those present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Minutes 

 

 Selectman Pike moved to accept the minutes of June 20, 2016 as written. Selectman 

Cormier seconded and the motion passed unanimously.  

 

 TA Beaudin noted that the minutes of June 24th were not available for signature although 

completed and that they will be on the Board’s next meeting agenda.  

 

Abatements, Manifests, Exemptions & Credits  
 

 Chairman Mooney moved to approve the abatements, manifests, exemptions and credits; 

seconded by Selectman Pike, unanimously approved. 

 

Bill Nutter – Wareing Road 

 

 Bill Nutter was present to ask the Board to continue Wareing Road improvements to the 

driveway at 114 Wareing Road which is an additional 180 feet from the cut off now. He 

explained that he had missed the meetings where paving the remaining section of road was 

discussed but would like the Board’s consideration. He noted that it is the last residence on the 

road and the improvements are stopping short of this residence. Bill explained that based on 

Adam’s bid for the work, he figured a total estimate of $19,000 to do the additional work being 

requested. He commented that he doesn’t know where the Town is at or if there are any funds 

left in project. Chairman Mooney explained that the project had only been engineered to the 

current cut off location. Bill Nutter commented that it isn’t rocket science and doesn’t feel 

additional engineering is necessary as there have been plenty of roads rebuilt to good quality 

standards without engineering.  

 



 
Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 2 July 11, 2016 

There was a brief discussion regarding the status of the work on the project with TA 

Beaudin noting that a letter has been sent to DES regarding a dewatering plan so the project can 

continue forward. Bill expressed that he would be willing to assist with the expense of getting 

the road paved to the residence, either through materials or what even the Board is willing to 

consider.  Bill commented that he feels like he was there for the Town when there was 

restructuring of zoning in the area and feels as though the Town should consider this proposal 

because of that. There was discussion of how the cut off was determined with Chairman Mooney 

explaining that it was to go far enough to consume the new entrance to the DBU pit. TA Beaudin 

ask if there is a large culvert in the area that Bill is talking about, Bill indicated that there is no 

culvert but his proposal includes a catch basin in the area of the driveway to the residence. Bill 

expressed that he doesn’t think it’s an unreasonable request as this is the last house to be built on 

Wareing Road. Selectman Cormier indicated that he feels that it’s worth asking about, Selectman 

Pike commented that he thinks 4 inches of paving beyond where the truck traffic would be is an 

overkill; Bill agreed that less pavement would be fine. Chairman Mooney asked Bill to give the 

Board time to look into it and talk about it further to see if they can come up with a resolution. 

Bill thanked the Board for their time. 

 

Primex CAP Program – 2017-2019 
 

TA Beaudin reviewed with the Board a letter from Primex regarding Workers 

Compensation offerings to continue in the contribution assurance program they are offering a 

maximum cap of 10% on Workers Compensation. TA Beaudin noted that last year workers 

compensation actually went down 2% based on claim history. TA Beaudin recommends 

continuing to working with Primex. Chairman Mooney commented that as the increase is low it 

doesn’t necessitate going out for bids. TA Beaudin explained that there are no other public risk 

pool options at this time. There is an exploratory group being formed that may be an option in 

the future. Chairman Mooney asked if the options are pretty limited and TA Beaudin indicated 

that they are. TA Beaudin noted that although the commitment would restrict the Town from 

change for 3 years, it would allow time to see what this other group is going to do and what their 

rates will be.  

 

Selectman Cormier read the following resolution: RESOLVED: To hereby accept the 

offer of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex) to enter into its 

Workers’ Compensation Contribution Assurance Program (CAP) as of the date of the adoption 

of this resolution, and to be contractually bound to all of the terms and conditions of Primex risk 

management pool membership during the term of the Workers’ Compensation Contribution 

Assurance Program (CAP). The coverage proved by Primex in each year of membership shall be 

as then set forth in the Coverage Documents of Primex. 

 

 I attest that the foregoing is a true copy of the Resolution of the Governing Board of the 

Town of Belmont adopted on July 11, 2016. Selectman Pike seconded the resolution and it 

passed unanimously. 

 

Survey Results 
 

  TA Beaudin advised that there was 71 people that completed the survey. She noted that 

she’s not is the length may have deterred more people or if they just did not want to participate. 

She noted that it was well advertised including on social media and hard copies available at 

Town Hall. She added that here is good info in the survey results and she was surprised by the 

lack of awareness for library programs. TA Beaudin indicated that she will go through the 



 
Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 3 July 11, 2016 

surveys further and share additional information at the staff meeting. It was noted that it was 

only a 1% response. 

 

 

Other New Business 

Police Department New Hire 
 

TA Beaudin reviewed with the Board a memo received from Police Chief Lewandoski 

recommending the hiring of Maxwell Hodgdon as a fulltime certified police officer. It was noted 

that his start date would be July 31st. He would be hired at a grade 10 step 7 with a 6 month 

probationary period which upon successful completion would receive an additional step. He is 

currently a full time officer with Gilmanton. 

 

Selectman Cormier moved to hire Maxwell Hodgdon as recommended. Selectman Pike 

seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 

 

Town Building Heating Systems 
 

 TA Beaudin reminded the Board that the previous RFP for heating systems in the Town 

Hall, Fire Department, Police Department and Corner Meeting House provided no submissions. 

There was 2 firms that toured the buildings, but wanted an engineered plan to move forward. The 

estimate for mechanical engineering for the project was estimated to be $8-$10,000 per building. 

New England air systems provided an engineering plan and equipment proposal for the project 

that far exceeded the budget for the projects. It was noted that the budget was based on 

information provided by a local contractor.  

 

In light of the current information it is being recommended to proceed with the FD 

project at this time and Dutile Refrigeration provided an updated estimate for just the FD of 

$22,200. Chairman Mooney asked why the FD; it was noted that it is most in need and has a 

greater opportunity for failure. It was noted that it is a propane system. There was discussion of 

the PD and CMH being able to share propane if a system for these 2 locations is pursued in the 

future and propane is not an option for TH. There was discussion regarding the ability to put 

mini split systems in areas of the PD that lack heat at this time, similar to what was done in 

dispatch. It was noted that it would just be a patch but the mini split systems can be moved to a 

new location if necessary. Dutile will be asked to quote a mini split. TA Beaudin noted that she 

will have to reach out to Rural Development and let them know that the Town can’t meet the 

requirements for the grant.  

 

Selectman Pike move to accept proposal from Dutile Refrigeration for the Fire 

Department system. Heat and AC throughout. Selectman Cormier seconded and the motion 

passed unanimously. 

 

SMART Meeting Space 

 

TA Beaudin explained to the Board that the new SMART recovery program that is 

coming to the area is in need of meeting space and has requested help from Belmont with a 

location for meetings. General Assistance Director Donna Cilley and Police Chief Mark 

Lewandoski in early June attended a meeting with Scott Rupp who is going to facilitate the 

program to get a better understanding of the program and their needs. TA Beaudin noted that 

Donna was present and could answer any questions that the Board may have regarding the 

program. It is being recommended that meeting space be provided for them either at the CMH or 



 
Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 4 July 11, 2016 

the Mill Building 1st floor with preference being at the Mill Building. If this is something the 

Board agrees to move forward with the meetings would on Mondays for 60-90 minutes typically 

beginning at 6:00 or 6:30. Scott Rupp has agreed to be responsible for the space. The meeting 

will consist of 6-12 people on average. There is always an open door similar to AA meetings so 

the numbers will fluctuate. Donna noted that with this program they deal with scoping skills, 

building motivation and managing thoughts & feelings. They are anonymous unlike AA/NA. 

This is an up and coming program that will be vital to the community. Chairman Mooney asked 

if the program is for people that have gone to recovery; Donna explained, no, they are looking 

for recovery. Donna added that she wasn’t familiar with the program but did a lot of research and 

feels it will cover a need that is significant in this area. She added that the Mill Building seems to 

fit the need for a meeting space for this type of anonymous program. She noted that Scott would 

assure that there is no hanging out after meetings and would arrange for another location for the 

after meeting conversations. The program is open to anyone.  

 

Donna expressed that she feels it will be a great benefit to the community. TA Beaudin 

noted that Scott has agreed to furnish the meeting space with tables and chairs that will suit his 

needs. Additionally, toilets and sinks that were removed will need to be put back and the space 

can be made ready for the meetings to start August 1st. TA Beaudin indicated that she would 

notify the other Mill tenants. The Board agreed with the use of the Mill Building to host the 

SMART program as proposed. The Board Thanked Donna Cilley. 

 

Miscellaneous 

 

TA Beaudin advised the Board that Steve Paquin had recently attended a leadership 

symposium with funds that had been encumbered from last year. He saw a great deal of benefit 

and hadn’t attended one like this before. He submitted his expenses to the International Code 

Council (ICC) and they reimbursed $1086 of his expenses, all but $120 of his overall cost. The 

Board is being asked to accept the check as unanticipated funds. Steve is looking to attend a 

similar conference this fall.   

 

Selectman Pike moved to accept the $1086 reimbursement from the ICC. Selectman 

Cormier seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 

 

TA Beaudin explained to the Board that she received a request to repurpose the old 

bathhouse as a central storage unit for all of the maintenance equipment that is currently stored at 

different locations throughout town. The new bathhouse is well underway, and the request is to 

gut the old bathhouse building and relocate it to a slab that is currently on the left of the park 

parking area. The Board agreed with the proposed change of use. 

 

Selectman Cormier commented that the roof is on the new bathhouse and the project is 

moving along well. TA Beaudin noted that there will be a small amount of finish work to be 

done onsite here once it is delivered. 

 

Non-Public Session 

 

 Chairman Ruth Mooney moved to enter non-public session in accordance with RSA 91-

A: 3 II (c) at 5:46 pm; Selectman Pike seconded the motion. Roll call was taken Ronald Cormier, 

Jon Pike and Ruth Mooney. Also present was Town Administrator. 

 

 Chairman Mooney closed the non-public session at 6:45 p.m.      

  



 
Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 5 July 11, 2016 

The meeting adjourned at 6:47 p.m. 

 

 

 

            

      Ruth P. Mooney, Chairman 

 

 

            

      Ronald Cormier, Vice Chairman 

 

 

            

      Jon Pike 


